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Standing in a clearing amidst a wooded area of northeastern Person County, the
frame Holloway-Walker-Dollarhite house comprises three principal sections: a one-
and-a-half=-story block with a shed addition, whose Georgian details and door hardware
suggest a late eighteenth century date of construction; a two-story central block
whose form and Greek Revival trim indicates that it was added to the original section
of the house during the mid-nineteenth century; and a one-and-a-half story section
that the present owner moved to the property in 1976 and whose surviving details
suggest an early nineteenth century date of construction. Between the two-story
central section and the portion of the house that was moved to the property, the
present owner has construgted a conpecting block containing a bathroom and passageway.

The original one-and-a-half story section of the house stands on a foundation of
random-coursed stone laid with mortar. A sharply pitched gable roof shelters this
part of the house, which is sheathed with characteristically Georgian molded and
beaded weatherboards. A random~coursed stone chimney, which is laid up with mortar
and has a pair of paved shoulders, stands on the southeast end of the one-and-a-~half
story block. Alongside it is a horizontal board=and-batten door with an iron latch and
strap hinges. A nearly identical door provides an entrance on the opposite side of
the house, and a third door connects the one-and-a-half-story block with the shed
addition. The windows on the one-and-a-half-story block are small--a pair of tiny,
square two—over=two sash windows lights the attic in the southeast gable end, and a
narrow four-over-four window furnishes additional light for the attic in the north-
west gable end. There is only one first floor w1ndow, a narrow four—over—four sash
opening on the bu1ld1ng s southwest 31de. " : S

I . . . A ) L Ty :

The one—and—a—half story section has a single room on the first floor, which is
finished in plaster over a plain wainscot with a broad chair rail arld baseboard. The
fireplace is enframed by a mantel with a frieze that is divided into three panels and
adorned with a dentil molding below a molded shelf. An enclosed stair, which retains
its original vertical board-and-batten door and hardware, rises along the northeast
corner of the structure to the unpartitioned and unadorned attic, which is ‘also finished
in plaster.

The one-room shed addition carries across the entire northeast side of the one-and-
a-half-story main block. Like the main block, it rests on a stone foundation, and a
stone, single-shoulder end chimney which stands on the southeast side of the house
furnishes it with a single fireplace. This chimney and that of the house's original
section are the dominant elements of the southeast elevation, A vertical board-and-
batten door with iron strap hinges provides an entrance alongside the chimney, and
there are two windows along the mortheast side of the shed.

The interior of the shed is finished in plaster above a simple chair rail, a
wainscot of sunken panels, and a baseboard. A later feature of the shed room is its
unusual Greek Revival mantel, which has a broad frieze composed of symmetrical moldings
and corner blocks framing two flat panels. Other atypical and possibly later features
seen in the shed room are the flat, thin projecting hoods over the windows.
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Like the earlier portion of the house, the central, mid-nineteenth century section
rests on a continuous stone foundation. It is sheltered by a shallow hip roof often
seen on Greek Revival houses of the North Carolina piedmont and is sheathed with plain
weatherboards. The house was equipped with a set of metal downspouts, adorned with
decorative stars on their fronts and ornamental moons at their sides, at each of its
four corners. Only one of these downspouts has survived to the present, but the
current owner of the house has made three copies of the surviving downspout and in-
stalled them at the three corners of the central block.

The house follows a two-bay division on both the front (southwest) and rear (morth-
east) elevations, which reflects its side hall interior plan. Porches shelter entrances
at both the front and rear. The rear porch has a gable-front roof and is upheld by thick
tapered posts and pilasters. The front porch has a shed and is supported by thick, square-
in section posts and pilasters. The walls under both porches are set in flush sheathing,
and both entrances have two-leaf, four-panel doors framed by plain broad, symmetrical
surrounds. The front door is surmounted by a three-light transom. The windows of the
central block have typically Greek Revival six-over-six sash. .

The broad stair hall occupies much of the space in the central block. The stair
rises from the front of the house to a rear landing, and then rises forward to the second
floor. It retains its original round handrail and thin balusters, but the simple original
newel has been replaced with a late nineteenth century turned newel by the present owner.
The stair hall windows have typical Greek Revival surrounds that are broad and plain on
three sides with three-part molded sills and corner blocks. The hall is finished in
plaster with a deep, two-part baseboard.

The first floor room is, predictably, the most elaborately finished part of the
central, Greek Revival section of the house. The two-part baseboard seen in the hall
recurs, but here the lower part is marbleized. The window surrounds in this room are also
more elaborate than those in the hall--they consist of a broad, symmetrical molding,
corner blocks, and a paneled apron. The most distinctive element of the room is the
marbleized mantel, which displays the typical Greek Revival post-and-lintel form and a
three-part frieze in which two undulating sections flank a central block. A recently
added feature of this room is the door, constructed with nineteenth century features
salvaged from other buildings, that connects the central Greek Revival section to the
newly constructed wing containing the bathroom.

The second story room is less elaborate than the one below it--~the window surrounds
are plain on three sides with molded sills, and the deep, two=-part baseboard is not
marbleized., The mantel follows the familiar post-and=-lintel form; its pilasters and
frieze are fluted and its corner blocks are plain. As on the first floor, a door built
of nineteenth century materials salvaged from other buildings, has been added to provide

access to the newly constructed part of the house.
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The early nineteenth century portion of the residence (known as the Dollarhite house)
was moved to the property by the present owner in 1976; it formerly stood on South Hyco
Creek near the Caswell County line. The previous owner had allowed the structure to
deteriorate considerably, and gave it to the present owner, Mrs. Mary Merritt Winstead,
provided that she move it. Mrs. Winstead added the Dollarhite house, as well as
the small, newly constructed connecting block, so that she could provide the residence
with kitchen and bathroom facilities without harming the integrity of the other sections

of the house,

The one-and-a-half story Dollarhite house rests on a new, continous stone foundation
laid with mortar. It is sheltered by a gable roof and has a newly built random-coursed
stone end chimney, also laid with mortar, which according to the present owner was
designed to resemble the dwelling's original chimney. Both the front and rear facades
have three-bay divisions with rebuilt six=-over-nine sash windows.flanking centrally placed
doors. A pair of small four-over-four sash windows light the abbreviated second story

at the gable end.

The interior follows a two-room plan on both the first and second stories. Both
first floor rooms retain most of their original wainscot which consists of broad
horizontally laid boards and is trimmed by a plain, deep baseboard and a simple chair
rail. The most significant surviving feature in the Dollarhite house is the Georgian
mantel in the principal first floor room, which is framed by a broad molding with mitred
corners and is surmounted by a shelf with a bold,multi~part molding. An apparently
original door with six flat panels, set in a thin, three-part frame, separates the
principal first floor room from the smaller room where the kitchen has been installed.
Most of the other doors are late nineteenth or early twentieth century five-panel ones

installed by the present owner.

The stair rises along the northeast corner of the principal first floor room. The
open portion of the stair rises seven steps to a two-panel door; the rest of the stair,
which turns ninety degrees above a narrow landing, is enclosed. Below the enclosed
landing on the first floor is a closet space whose door has four flat panels. The open
portion of the stair has a balustrade whose turned newel, rounded handrail, and thin
balusters were installed by the present owner. The rest of the stair is said to be
original to the house.

The abbreviated second story of the house was originally finished with flush boards
but is now sheet-rocked. The most notable surviving early feature is the balustrade
lining the stairwell, which consists of a simple octagonal newel, a thick molded hand-
rail, and plain, square-in-section balusters. A door with six flat panels, apparently

original, separates the two second story rooms.
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The newly constructed passage between the Dollarhite house and the central, Greek
Revival section contains a passage and closet on the first floor and a passage and bath
at the second story. There is a short stair on the second floor to connect the second
story of the Dollarhite house and the slightly lower upper floor -of the central, Greek

Revival section.

There are two other structures on the site. The first is a one-room log building
now used for storage but originally said to have been a dwelling, which was taken down,
moved to the property from the site of an electric power plant under construction near=
by, and rebuilt here by the present owner. The second structure is a stone well of
undetermined age with a recently constructed frame canopy.

A final accessory feature of the house is the Walker family cemetery, located about
one hundred yards southwest of the house. The cemetery is surrounded by a low iron fence.
The gate has an iron plate with the name "J. D. Walker" inscribed upon it. The largest
stones are those of Jesse Walker's two wives; there are several other smaller stones

whose inscriptions are illegible.

FOOTNOTES

lMary Merritt Winstead to Catherine W. Bishir, July 6, 1978.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Holloway-Walker-Dollarhite house comprises three principal sections: a one-
and-a-half-story block with a shed addition, whose Georgian detail and door
hardware indicate a late eighteenth century date of construction; a two-story
central block whose form and Greek Revival trim denote a mid-nineteenth century
construction date; and a one-and-a-half story section, moved to the property by
the present owner, whose surviving details suggest an early nineteenth century
date of construction. The original one-and-a-half story section is a relatively
rare surviving example of late eighteenth century frame construction, and retains
nearly all of its early trim and hardware. The mid-nineteenth century section is
also well-preserved and features a notable marbleized mantel with a distinctive
undulating frieze. The early nineteenth century section had deteriorated con-
siderably prior to its removal from its original site and retains relatively few
of its original details. Its addition to the house has, however, permitted the
installation of modern kitchen facilities without damage to the two other more
significant sections of the residence. The Holloway-Walker-Dollarhite house is
associated with two prominent Person County families: the Holloway family, whose
members had large landholdings in late eighteenth and early nineteenth century
Person County; and the Walker family, whose members were important figures in

the mid- and late-nineteenth century tobacco industry of Person County and in the
late nineteenth century tobacco industry of Durham. The one-and-a-half-story
section of the house recently moved to the property was owned by Charles Smith
Winstead, a Person County lawyer who was elected to several terms in the North
Carolina legislature, for much of the nineteenth century.

CRITERIA ASSESSMENT

A. The Holloway-Walker-Dollarhite house is associated with both the cultivation
and manufacture of tobacco during the middle and late nineteenth century,

a and with the increasing prosperity of the northeast piedmont as a result of
tobacco's importance during this period.

- B. The Holloway-Walker-Dollarhite house is associated with the Holloway family,

which was prominent in late eighteenth and early nineteenth century Person
County. The house is also associated with the Walker family, which played
-a prominent role in the development of the county's tobacco industry during
the middle and late nineteenth century. Jesse Walker, who built the central
two-story portion of the house, was a large tobacco grower who, along with



WPS Form 10-800-a
(7-81)

United States Department of the Interior.
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Continuation sheet ltem number 8 “ Page 1

his brother Alexander, operated a successful tobacco factory near Jesse
Walker's farm. Alexander Walker later became a léading figure in the develop-
ment of Durham's tobacco industry. The section of the residence known as the
Dollarhite house was owned for much of the nineteenth century by Charles Smith
Winstead, who was elected to several terms in the North Carolina legislature
and served as both president pro-tem and speaker of the state Senate during the

1860s.

C. The one-—and—-a-half story eighteenth century section of the Holloway-Walker-
Dollarhite house and the central, two-story, mid-nineteenth century portion,
embody distinctive characteristics of the regional Georgian and Greek Revival
styles, respectively. The one-and-a-half-story section is particularly
significant as a rare surviving example of late eighteenth century frame
construction. The central Greek Revival section retains an unusual vernacular
mantel with marbleizing and a distinctive undulating frieze.
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Sometime in the last two decades of the eighteenth century John Holloway built a house
near what is now Douglas Road in northeast Person County. He constructed the dwelling on a
tract which he had received in two parts in 1783 and 1785 when Person was part of Caswell
County.l The structure subsequently served as a residence for Holloway and his descendants
as well as other prominent Person County families. Since its comstruction it has undergone
two major additions. As one of the county's oldest buildings, it reflects the history of
rural piedmont North Carolina.

John Holloway was a successful farmer with large landholdings in Person County. He
probably grew tobacco which was the primary cash crop in the upper piedmont counties,
including Person, in the period 1790-1860. Holloway township was named in honor of his
family.2 When he died in 1799, Holloway left the..tract on which he lived and 500 acres
to his son James Holloway.3

James Holloway owned and farmed the land until 1835 when he deeded it to his son John
A. Holloway. James Holloway died approximately five years later.4 John A. Holloway con-
tinued to operate the farm and served in the state legislature, 1842-1843. He then mig-
rated to Texas where he died around 1847. At his death his brother and executor William D.
Holloway sold the house and 407 acres to one Jesse Walker.?

Walker was also a tobacco planter, and he subsequently bought an additional 225 acres
from the Holloway family. 1In 1850 he owned twelve slaves and produced 6,500 pounds of
tobacco.® Like a number of North Carolina farmers and planters, he benefited from the
economic surge which occurred in the state and South in the decade before the Civil War.
In Person County this moderate boom was marked by the growth of the production and trade
of plug and smoking tobacco.’ During this period of relative prosperity Walker con-
structed the two story Greek Revival dwelling as an addition to the Holloway house. The
new structure embodied the classical features and modest elegance made possible by the
profits of the antebellum era.

Following the Civil War and Reconstruction the tobacco industry in Person County
revived and Jesse Walker and his brother Alexander began operating a tobacco factory near
the Walker Farm. The factory was called Rose Hill, and the small community which grew up
around it became known as Daysville. In 1870 the factory produced 3,000 pounds of leaf
tobacco and 2,000 pounds of plug tobacco. The Walkers employed sixteen hands at the factory:
six men, two women, and eight children.® The Walker tobacco farm and factory remained
successful throughout the late nineteenth century when the production of bright-leaf
tobacco and the new popularity of cigarette smoking proved to be a boon to the tobacco
industry. Alexander Walker eventually became a leader in that industry, statewide. In
the 1880s he became a member of the Bull Durham firm and the Durham Tobacco Board of Trade.
He helped open the first tobacco warehouses in Durham and was a strong backer of bright-
leaf production. As a promoter of the Farmer's Alliance he worked to protect tobacco
farmers from speculation.?

In 1893 Jesse Walker deeded all his property, including his house, to his son E. M.
Walker. 1In 1908 E. M. Walker sold the homeplace to W. H. B. Newell, a Roxboro merchant.
In the following year Newell deeded the house and land to O. D. and R. D. Bailey, who
were farmers and neighbors.l0 R. D. Bailey subsequently bought out the interest of O. D.
Bailey and in 1919 sold the property to Person County physician, Dr. John H. Merritt,
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whose father Dr. William Merritt had been a member of the North Carolina Constitutional
Convention of 1868 and of the state Senate in 1893 and 1897.l11 When Dr. John H. Merritt
died in 1944 his daughter Mary Merritt Winstead inherited the house and 192 acres. In
1976 she moved a structure known as the Dollarhite House to the site and attached it to
the Holloway-Walker dwelling.l2

The Dollarhite House dates from the early nineteenth century and once stood on South
Hyco Creek near the Caswell County line. The house tract was owned by Ezekiel Dollarhite,
a farmer, who had purchased several hundred acres in the area in the 1770s.13 Whether he
or his descendants built the homeplace is not certain, but the structure was ultimately
sold by one descendant Cornelius Dollarhite to Charles Smith Winstead in the mid-nineteenth
century. Winstead was a successful lawyer and landowner, and he served several terms in
the state legislature, 1850-1881. He was president pro tem of the state Senate in 1868-
1869 and speaker in 1865-1866.14 After Winstead's death in 1908, the Dollarhite House
went to his heirs who gave it to Mrs. Mary Winstead in 1976 provided that she move it.
She was married to Harry Wharton Winstead, grandson of Charles Smith Winstead. Mrs.
Winstead moved the Dollarhite House to the present location and attached it to the
Holloway-Walker dwelling "with a small link (to use as baths)."

The structure, of course, is closely related to the surrounding environmment. Archaeo-
logical remains, such as trash pits, wells, and structural remains, which may be present,
can provide information valuable to the understanding and interpretation of the structure.
Information concerning use patterns, social standind and mobility, as well as structural
details are often only evident in the archaeological record. Therefore, archaeological
remains may well be an important component of the significance of the structure. At this
time no investigation has been done to discover these remains, but it is probable that they
exist, and this should be considered in any development of the property.
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NOTES

1Caswell County Deed Books (microfilm), Archives, Division of Archives and History,
Raleigh, North Carolina, Deed Book B, pp. 152, 288-289, hereinafter cited as County
Deed Books with appropriate county name, book, and page number.

2Alexander R. Foushee, Reminiscences: A Sketch and Letters Descriptive of Life in
Person County in Former Days (Roxboro: Taylor's Printing Company, 1960), 40; Guion
Griffis Johnson, Antebellum North Carolina: A Social History (Chapel Hill: The Univer-
sity of North Carolina Press, 1937), 417.

3Person County Will Books (microfilm), Archives, Division of Archives and History,
Raleigh, North Carolina, Will Book 4, p. 166, hereinafter cited as Person County Will
Books.

4Pers_:on County Deed Book O, p. 78; Person County Estate Records, James Holloway,
1840, Archives, Division of Archives and History, Raleigh, North Carolina, hereinafter
cited as Person County Estates with appropriate name and date.

5John L. Cheney, Jr. (ed.), North Carolina Government: A Narrative History, 1585-
1974 (Raleigh: North Carolina Department of the Secretary of State, 1975), 312; Person
County Estates, John A. Holloway, 1847; Person County Deed Book Q, p. 353.

6Seventh Census of the United States, 1850: Person County, North Carolina, Population
Schedule, 60; Slave Schedule, 13; Agricultural Schedule, 31, hereinafter cited as Person
County Census with appropriate year and schedule.

7Hugh Talmage Lefler and Albert Ray Newsome, North Carolina: The History of a Southern
State (Chapel Hill: The University of North Carolina Press, 1973), 391-392; Foushee,
Reminiscences, 36.

8"Notes on Holloway-Walker=Dollarhite House by Mary Merritt Winstead,'" two unpublished
manuscripts at Archaeology and Historic Preservation Section, Division of Archives and
History, Raleigh, North Carolina, hereinafter cited as "Winstead Notes'; Person County
Census, 1870: Manufacturing Schedule, Holloway Township, 1.

9Nannie May Tilley, The Bright-Tobacco Industry, 1860-1929 (Chapel Hill: The Uni-
versity of North Carolina Press, 1948), 124, 289, 372-373, 409~410; Lefler and Newsome,
North Carolina, 505, 509-511.

1OPerson County Deed Books MM, p. 63; 15, p. 383; "Winstead Notes."

11Person County Deed Books 14, p. 486; 27, p. 519; Cheney (ed.), North Carolina
Government, 472, 475, 845.

2"Winstead Notes."
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13Caswell County Deed Book A, p. 367.

14Person County Deed Book CC, p. 164; '"Winstead Notes"; Cheney (ed.), North Carolina
Government, 319, 327, 331, 332, 357n, 447, 449, 461.

15

"Winstead Notes.,"
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